
 

Molalla City Council 
Meeting located at: 

Molalla Adult Community Center 
315 Kennel Ave. 

Molalla, OR  97038 
 

July 27, 2011 
 

Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
 

Work session: 6:30 p.m.The Council will review and discuss agenda items for the business meeting. 
 
Business meeting: 7 p.m.The Council has adopted Public Participation Rules. Copies of these rules and 
public comment cards are available at the entry desk. Public comment cards must be turned into to the 
City Recorder prior to the start of the Council meeting. 
 
The City will endeavor to provide a qualified bilingual interpreter, at no cost, if requested at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. To obtain services call the City Manager at 829-6855. 

________________________ 
 
977th Regular Meeting 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Flag Salute. 
B. Roll Call. 
C. Approval of Minutes 

1) Minutes of July 13th, 2011 
 
2. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
3. AWARDS & RECOGNITIONS 

A. Introduction of Interim Police Chief Rod Lucich. 
B. Commendations: Officer Steve Long and Sgt. Chris Long 
C. Commendation: Dakota Yates. 

 



July 27, 2011                                                 Molalla City Council Agenda—Page 2 of 2 

 
 

 
4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Hart Avenue Apartments/Retail Development 
 
 
5. CONTINUING BUSINESS 

A. Motion to Censure a Member of the City Council.  
 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 
 
7. ORDINANCES 

A. Ordinance No. 2011-05: An Ordinance Amending the Molalla Municipal Code Relating to 
Purchasing Authority. 

 
 

8. RESOLUTIONS 
 

 
 
9. PROCLAMATIONS 

 
 
 

10. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. Stowers Road Reconstruction Project Update—Marc Howatt, Public Works Director. 

 
 
11. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

A. Pursuant to ORS 192.660 (h): To consult with counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a 
public body with regard to current litigation on litigation likely to be filed. 
 

  
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 



 

Page 1 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

Minutes of the Molalla City Council Regular Meeting 
Molalla Adult Center 

315 Kennel Ave. Molalla Oregon 97038 
Wednesday, July 13, 2011 7:00PM    

 
ATTENDANCE: Mayor Mike Clarke, Present; Councilor Stephen Clark, Present; Councilor George 
Pottle, Present; Councilor Jimmy Thompson, Present; Councilor Dennis Wolfe, Present; Councilor Jim 
Needham, Present; Council President Debbie Rogge, Present. 
 
STAFF IN-ATTENDANCE: City Manager John Atkins, Jr; City Recorder Sadie Cramer; Public 
Works Director Marc Howatt; City Attorney Heather Martin. 
 
MINUTES 
 
Councilor Pottle moved to approve the minutes of as amended for June 22, 2011 Councilor Rogge 
seconded.  Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; 
Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion to exit regular meeting and enter into an Urban Renewal meeting.  
Councilor Thompson seconded. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; 
Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; 
Councilor Clark, Aye. (7:09PM) 
 
Council meeting resumed at 7:16 p.m. 
 
COMUN ICATIONS 
 
Oral 
 
Glen Boreth and Karalie Vest, 623 S Molalla Ave. - Mr. Boreth stated that the Molalla Wild River 
Barbeque event went really well this year.  Glen thanked Councilor Thompson for volunteering for a 
whole day and he thanked Councilor Rogge, Councilor Thompson and Mayor Clarke for helping with 
the Mayor’s Spirit awards.  He also thanked Mayor Clarke for helping with the awards presentations.  
The feedback was that this couldn’t have happened without the City’s fiscal support and the Council 
support.  Ms. Vest stated that there were comments from the vendors that they loved coming to Molalla 
because of the setting in Clark Park with the oak trees and the friendliness of the community. 
 
Carol Westergreen, 32483 S Mathias Rd - Stated her concerns on the project for a Design Feasibility 
Study for the Molalla Forest Road.  She also asked if the City has looked at all of the options before 
spending any money on the project.  
 
CONTINUING BUSINESS 
Planning Services Intergovernmental Agreement Update 
 
CM Atkins stated the Clackamas County Board of Commissioners is scheduled to approve the 
Intergovernmental Agreement tomorrow morning.  CM stated that he plans to pick up the agreement as 
soon as it is approved, for the mayor’s signature.   The only changes made in the agreement that were 



 

Page 2 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

relating to indemnification issues.  The city attorney has reviewed and has found revisions to be 
satisfactory 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Engineering Services Contract for Kennel Ave. Reconstruction Project 
 
In accordance with the conditions of approval for receipt of a $190,000 Community Development Block 
Grant to reconstruct Kennel Avenue between Heintz Street and Toliver Road, the City of Molalla is 
responsible for engineering and design services, subject to county approval.  The proposed contract for 
professional engineering services is exempt from competitive bidding requirements established in City 
of Molalla Resolution No. 2005-03, Public Contracting Rules, and satisfies the requirements established 
in Model Public Contracting Rules adopted by the Oregon Attorney General (OAR 137-048-0200) for 
contracts under $50,000.   
 
Public Works Director Marc Howatt stated that he has been in contact with Firwood Design Group for 
engineering and design services for the Kennel Avenue project.  Firwood Design Group is unofficially 
one of the City’s consulting engineers, monitoring wetland reports like Bear Creek.  He anticipates the 
bid opening to be in late August.  
 
Councilor Clark asked PWD Howatt why we needed a design engineer and are we also going to do that 
for the Stowers project. PWD Howatt stated that the reason that we need the engineer is because this is a 
federally funded program administered by Clackamas County and that engineering is required by the 
grant award.  The City hires the engineering and the County oversees the project.  He also stated that the 
city will do the same for the Stowers Road project.  
 
Councilor Thompson made a motion to authorize staff to award the contract with Firwood Design group 
for the Kennel Avenue Reconstruction Project. Councilor Rogge seconded. Motion approved  
(7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; 
Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Authorize Mayor to Sign Letter Requesting Special Public Works Fund Grant for Design 
Feasibility Study of S. Molalla Forest Road as an Alternative East-West Route. 
 
CM Atkins stated that the URA approved a $9,000 matching fund in hopes of obtaining a $60,000 
special public works fund grant.  The city received approval of its pre application submittal; if we are 
awarded this grant we would address some of the concerns Carol Westergreen brought up in her remarks 
to the Council.  
 
Staff and Council entered into discussion regarding the feasibility study on Molalla Forest Road. 
 
Councilor Thompson made a motion to authorize the Mayor to sign a letter confirming City's interest in 
applying for a special Public Works fund grant for design feasibility study of South Molalla Forest Road 
as an alternative East-West route. Councilor Rogge seconded. Motion approved (6-1) Mayor Clarke, 
Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, 
Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Nay.  
 
Motion to Authorize Reduction in Water Bill Payment for Molalla Fire District 



 

Page 3 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

 
The Molalla Fire District has proposed replacing the manual reader board in Long Park with an 
electronic reader board.  Most of the cost of installation ($14,130) will be paid for from a grant from 
Molalla Communications.  The Fire District's cost will be approximately $6,000.  Separately, a request 
has been submitted to the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency Board to authorize that expenditure from 
urban renewal funds.  A reduction in the Fire District's monthly water bill of $100 per month is proposed 
in order to offset the Fire District's sign maintenance costs.  The City would benefit from the reader 
board by being able to post messages and announcements of public interest. 
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion to authorize reduction in the water bill payment for Molalla Fire 
District.  Councilor Thompson seconded. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, 
Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, 
Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
 
Lease of Fox Park by the School District to the City of Molalla 
 
City Manager John Atkins reported that during project proposals that involved the Molalla Arts 
Commissions upcoming Logging Mural installation and the Ford Family Foundations Leadership 
Program project of a Pavilion in Fox Park the city became aware that the city was only leasing the south 
end of the park from the Molalla River School District. In order for the projects to move forward a 
newly revised lease contract has been drafted. The contract would allow the city to lease the park and 
the library for $1.00 per year in conjunction with the City picking up all ground maintenance which the 
city is currently maintaining. It will allow the projects to move forward. 
 
Councilor Rogge motioned to allow the City Manager to enter into the new lease agreement for Fox 
Park with the Molalla River School District. Councilor Wolfe seconded. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor 
Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor 
Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
NEW BUSINESS REQUESTS 
 
Councilor Clark made a motion to add the Million Dollar SDC Moratorium to the upcoming agenda in 
case the Hart Avenue Apartments/Retail Development is not approved he would like to discuss 
repealing it.  CM Atkins stated that the SDC Moratorium would automatically lapse if the development 
is not approved or does not take place. The development proposal will come before Council on July 27, 
2011  
 
Councilor Needham stated he had some questions relating to the Hart Avenue project.  Councilor Rogge 
called a point of order that this subject was not on the agenda. CM Atkins stated that he would 
recommend no further actions or discussions relating to this item until the hearing on July 27,201. Any 
discussion by the council relating to a quasi-judicial matter could prejudice the hearing, a councilor or 
more than one councilor leaving them open for challenge that they were not objective.  Heather Martin, 
City Attorney concurred with the City Manager and that Councilor Needham can make inquires relating 
to that item at the public hearing. Councilor Clark moved to withdraw his request.  
 
 
 



 

Page 4 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

Motion to Censure 
Councilor Pottle made a motion to censure Councilor Needham, on grounds that he violated Council 
rules by criticizing a fellow member of the Council in a letter to the editor published in the Molalla 
Pioneer newspaper.   
 
Councilor Needham called a point of order and asked if this a motion to put the item on the next agenda.  
Heather Martin, City Attorney, stated that any motion for censure is required to have a second tonight 
and then it will be on the agenda for the next meeting for discussion.  The person implicated at that time 
will have the chance to respond. Councilor Thompson seconded. The item will be added to the July 27, 
2011 meeting agenda.  
 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
Ordinance No. 2011-04: An Ordinance Amending the Molalla Development Code Relating to 
Senior Housing 
 
On June 22, 2011, following a duly noticed public hearing and deliberations, the Council approved a 
proposed revision to the Molalla Development Code to provide for senior housing as a conditional use in 
the C-2 Commercial District.  The Code text change now comes before the Council for adoption in the 
form of an Ordinance.    
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion to approve Ordinance 2011-04 on first reading by title only, an 
Ordinance amending the Molalla development code relating to senior housing.  Councilor Thompson 
seconded. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; 
Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion for a second reading by title only to approve Ordinance 2011-04, an 
Ordinance amending the Molalla development code relating to senior housing.  Councilor Needham 
seconded. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; 
Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye. 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
Resolution No. 2011-10: A Resolution Referring to the Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter 
 
On June 22, 2011, following a public hearing and deliberations, the Council approved proposed 
revisions to the 1993 City Charter and directed staff to prepare a resolution and ballot measure referring 
the proposed charter to the voters of Molalla in the November 8, 2011 election. 
 
Councilor Thompson made a motion to approve Resolution 2011-10, A Resolution Referring to the 
Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter. It will be voted on independently giving the public the 
choice to keep or vote in the new proposed charter. Any of the other referral items will be added to the 
chosen charter. Councilor Rogge seconded. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor 
Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor 
Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 



 

Page 5 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

Resolution No. 2011-11: A Resolution Referring to Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter 
Amendment Increasing the Mayoral Term of Office from Two Years to Four Years. 
 
On June 22, 2011, following a public hearing and deliberations, the Council approved proposed 
amendment to the City Charter increasing the mayor's term of office from two years to four years and 
directed staff to prepare a resolution and ballot measure referring the proposed charter amendment to the 
voters of Molalla in the November 8, 2011 election.  
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion to approve Resolution 2011-11, A Resolution Referring to the Voters 
of Molalla a Proposed City Charter Amendment Increasing the Mayoral Term of Office from Two Years 
to Four Years. Councilor Needham seconded. Motion approved (7-0)  Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor 
Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor 
Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Resolution No. 2011-12: A Resolution Referring to the Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter 
Amendment Establishing Term Limits. 
 
On June 22, 2011, following a public hearing and deliberations, the Council approved proposed 
amendment to the City Charter limiting the terms of the Mayor and Councilors to eight consecutive 
years.  The Council directed staff to prepare a resolution and ballot measure referring the proposed 
charter amendment to voters of Molalla in the November 8, 2011 election.  
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion to approve Resolution 2011-12, A Resolution Referring to the Voters 
of Molalla a Proposed City Charter Amendment Establishing Term Limits. Councilor Thompson 
seconded. Motion approved (6-1) Mayor Clarke, Nay; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; 
Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Resolution No. 2011-13: A Resolution Referring to the Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter 
Amendment Relating to Annexations. 
 
On June 22, 2011, following a public hearing and deliberations, the Council approved proposed 
amendment to the City Charter requiring owner-initiated annexations of territory to the city to be 
approved by the voters in an election, with the election costs to be paid for by the property owner(s) 
seeking annexation. The Council directed the staff to prepare a resolution and ballot measure referring 
the proposed charter amendment to the voters of Molalla in the November 8, 2011 election.  
 
Councilor Thompson made a motion to approve Resolution 2011-13, A Resolution Referring to the 
Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter Amendment Relating to Annexations. Councilor Clark 
seconded. Motion approved (5-2) Mayor Clarke, Nay; Councilor Pottle, Nay; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; 
Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Councilor Rogge stated that she wanted to go on record stating that she is torn on this resolution and 
based on a wide diversity of citizen’s feelings she is going to refer it to the voters.  
 
Resolution No. 2011-14: A Resolution Referring to the Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter 
Amendment Relating to Removal of Elected Officials. 
 



 

Page 6 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

On June 22, 2011, following a public hearing and deliberations, the Council approved proposed 
amendment to the City Charter providing the removal of the Mayor or any Councilor from office by the 
City Council, following a public hearing, for attempting to coerce the City Manager in the appointment 
or removal of any employee, or in administrative decisions regarding city property or contracts.   
The Council directed staff to prepare a resolution and ballot measure referring the proposed charter 
amendment to the voters of Molalla in the November 8, 2011 election.  
 
CM Atkins stated that at the last meeting this item was tabled for tonight until staff could gather more 
information.  The question was asked last week how many other cities have this wording in their charter.  
CM Atkins stated that he was informed by the LOC that there are 23 cities that have this wording in 
their charter. 
 
Counsel Martin stated that when the League of Oregon Cities developed a model charter in 1984 a lot of 
the cities adopted the charter amendments prohibiting councilors from “interfering” with the city 
manager; this term was later revised in the model charter to “coerce,” as a more focused meaning. 
Counsel Martin, Staff and Council entered into discussion regarding the definition of coerce or interfere.  
 
Councilor Thompson made a motion to approve Resolution 2011-14, A Resolution Referring to the 
Voters of Molalla a Proposed City Charter Amendment Relating to Removal of Elected Officials. 
Councilor Rogge seconded. Motion approved (6-1) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; 
Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Nay; Councilor Rogge, Aye; 
Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
CM Atkins asked if he could have a motion authorizing staff in consultation with attorney to assign 
section numbers to all of the approved resolutions to be presented to the voters.   
 
Councilor Thompson made a motion to authorize the City Manager to assign section numbers to all of 
the approved resolutions to be presented to the voters.  Councilor Rogge seconded. Motion approved (7-
0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; 
Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
REPORTS AND ANNOUNCMENTS 
 
A written report on the status of the Stowers Road Reconstruction Project was submitted by Marc 
Howatt, Public Works Director. City Manager Atkins stated that the Stowers Road construction project 
is currently out to bid and he hopes to bring another update at the next meeting.  
 
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer stated that she would like to call MAC member, Jon Deshler, to the 
podium.  She stated that he was one that spearheaded the Wild West Fest Art Fest exhibit in the “Gallery 
Underground” and that he should be commended for his efforts along with the other Arts Commission 
members.   
 
Jon Deshler, 36880 S Hwy 213, Molalla stated that the art show was a success with at least 85 people 
coming through, including art being sold.  CM Atkins commended the Arts Commission for their great 
exhibition and thanked Councilor Rogge, staff and the commission for all of the other volunteers who 
helped to revamp the basement space and create a wonderful venue.   
 



 

Page 7 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

CR Cramer thanked Dan Leighton of Todos Juntos for having his community service workers help the 
Molalla Arts Commission paint the basement space for the art show. She also reported that after two 
long years the Municipal Code is now re-codified and finished.  The code is now online and it is a 
searchable database. It can be found on the on the City's website under city documents. 
 
CM Atkins stated that some time ago the Council approved a motion authorizing the use of contingency 
funds to cover anticipated excessive overtime.  Thanks to the supervisory efforts of Sgt. Chris Long, the 
expected excess overtime was eliminated and the general fund ended the year with a positive balance of 
$10,658.00. 
 
Councilor Clark enjoyed the Bar-B-Q at Clark Park and commended Sgt. Long for the control of 
overtime.  He also thanked the city recorder and city manager their work on the codification of the 
Municipal Code.  
 
Councilor Thompson stated that he had a wonderful time this weekend at the Bar-B-Q and there were a 
lot more members of the community that donated more time than he did.  He also thanked Mr. Atkins 
and Sadie for the work on the codification. He also thanked the Police Department for their control on 
the overtime. 
 
Councilor Needham stated that he went to the 2nd Friday event last week and was thrilled with the 
participation.  He also stated that he was able to ride in the 4th of July parade with Annie Lewingowski.  
He stated that he would like to express his condolences to the family of Martin Kirk, victim of a fatal hit 
and run accident.   
 
Councilor Rogge stated that she enjoyed the Wild West Art Fest and appreciated the work that the MAC 
put into it.  She also got to judge the Bar-B-Q and received a lot of positive feedback from both events. 
 
Mayor Clark thanked Councilor Pottle and Councilor Needham for sitting in on the interview process 
for the position of interim police chief.   
 
CM Atkins stated that he would like to a have a motion to authorize the CM to draw up a contract for the 
interim police chief at a salary not to exceed the current chief's salary. 
 
Councilor Rogge made a motion to authorize the CM to draw up a contract for the interim police chief at 
a salary not to exceed the current chief's salary. Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor 
Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor 
Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Staff and Council entered into discussion in regards to the $10,000 limit approval by council.  It was 
agreed that CM Atkins create an ordinance for clarification of the expenditures.   
 
Mayor Clarke suggested that everyone attend the Mexican Festival. The LOC has a contest called "If I 
were Mayor" for young candidates.  Levi Lostly from Country Christian wrote a letter which was 
submitted to the state LOC as our nomination.  He also stated that his granddaughter in the Air Force is 
coming home next week. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 



 

Page 8 of 8 
Minutes of July 13, 2011 

Mayor Clarke announced that the Council will now meet in executive session pursuant to ORS 
192.660(H) to consult counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to 
current litigation or litigation likely to be filed.  Councilor Rogge moved to exit out of regular session to 
enter into executive session.  Councilor Needham seconded.  Motion carried (7-0)  
Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; 
Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, Aye.  
 
Attendance in executive session at 8:28 p.m. Mayor Mike Clarke, Present; Councilor Stephen Clark, 
Present; Councilor George Pottle, Present; Councilor Jimmy Thompson, Present; Councilor Dennis 
Wolfe, Present; Councilor Jim Needham, Present; Council President Debbie Rogge, Present; City 
Attorney Heather Martin; City Recorder, Sadie Cramer and Molalla Pioneer Reporter, Bethany Monroe. 
 
Councilor Rogge moved to exit out of executive session and enter into regular session. Councilor 
Needham seconded. Motion carried (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Pottle, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, 
Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor Clark, 
Aye. (8:45 p.m.) 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councilor moved to the commons area. Councilor Rogge made a motion to adjourn.  Councilor 
Needham seconded.  Motion approved (7-0) Mayor Clarke, Aye; Councilor Wolfe, Aye; Councilor 
Pottle, Aye; Councilor Thompson, Aye; Councilor Needham, Aye; Councilor Rogge, Aye; Councilor 
Clark, Aye. 
 
Adjourned at 8:48 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________       ___________________________     
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer                                               Mayor Mike Clarke 
 

 
 
 

 



City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Public Hearing 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUBMITTED BY:   John Atkins, Jr., City Manager 
 

    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only 

Subject: Land Use Application for Proposed Apartment and Retail Development 

 

Recommendation: The Planning Commission recommends approval, with 
conditions 

 Date of Meeting to be Presented: July 27, 2011 

 

Fiscal Impact:   See  background statement below  

Background:   (Type a brief detailed summary of the item to be presented.) 
 
On May 17, 2011, the Planning Commission approved, with numerous conditions, a land use 
application submitted by Mr. Troy Vest to develop 164 apartment units and four retail structures 
consisting of approximately 30,000 square feet of commercial space between Hart and Shaver avenues 
south of W. Main Street (State Highway 211) in Molalla. The consolidated land-use application 
consists of a comprehensive plan map amendment, zone change, site design review, conditional use 
and partition to change land currently zoned light industrial to commercial.  The Planning Commission 
added a condition that the applicant be required to pay a proportionate share of the cost of installing a 
traffic signal at Main Street and Molalla Avenue. In its decision, the Planning Commission 
incorporated the recommendations of Oregon Department of Transportation for the traffic signal and 
highway and access improvements. Fiscal Impact: This proposed development is within the boundaries 
of the Molalla Urban Renewal District. Property tax revenue generated from increased assessed value 
of the property resulting from the improvements would accrue to the Urban Renewal District to carry 
out future city improvements. The project is also estimated to generate in excess of $150,000 in permit 
fees to the city. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item  
 

4.A. 
 
 



Molalla City Council 
CA 2010-1 Public Hearing 

Hart Avenue Apartments/Retail Development 

Table of Contents 

 

Notice of Public Hearing ........................................................................................... 1-2 

April 4, 2011 Planning Commission Hearing Minutes ................................................ 3-8 

Staff  Report and Preliminary Recommendations ................................................... 8-18 

Continuation of April 4, 2011 Planning Commission Minutes ................................ 18-20 

May 17, 2011 Planning Commission Hearing Minutes .......................................... 21-22 

Staff Report and Final Recommendations............................................................. 22-36 

Continuation of May 17, 2011 Planning Commission Minutes (Approval) ............. 36-40 

Site Plan, Commercial Structures............................................................................... 41 

Site Plan, Apartment Units ........................................................................................ 42 

Site Plan, Apartment Elevations ................................................................................ 43 

Apartments , Exterior Drawing .................................................................................. 44 

ODOT Recommendations ..................................................................................... 45-48 

ODOT Supplemental Recommendations............................................................... 49-51  

Proportional Share Estimate of Signalization (ATEP) .................................................. 52 

Multitech Proposed Modification to Condition No. 23............................................... 53 

 

 

 

 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



ODOT Supplemental Recommendations
CA 2010-1: Vest

2
5/4/2011

2. Signalization and channelization of OR 211-Molalla Avenue must be constructed
prior to City issuance of occupancy permits for site development.

3. To address traffic impacts on OR 211 and ensure safe operations, applicant shall
design and construct the following improvements on OR 211-Main Street to OOOT,
ADA and City specifications:

3a. Half street improvements on OR 211 along the site frontage to provide for
bikeway-shoulder, sidewalk and turn lanes, and any necessary additional off-site

improvements to accommodate the necessary extent of westbound left turn
and eastbound right turn lanes on OR 211 into Shaver Avenue.

3b. Shaver Avenue must maintain two-way travel with full access at OR 211. Shaver
Avenue shall be constructed to a three-lane cross-section between OR 211 and
the future extension of 3rd Avenue, to accommodate northbound left-turn and
right-turn lanes at the OR 211/Shaver Avenue intersection.

3c. Hart Avenue must be limited to right-in only access from OR 211. Applicant shall
construct a physical restriction of Hart Avenue to restrict traffic to one-way
southbound at the OR 211/Hart Avenue intersection, per OOOT and City
specifications.

4. Right of way dedication along the site's OR 211 frontage as necessary to
accommodate the planned cross section identified in the local Transportation System
Plan shall be provided by the Applicant through deed to the Oregon Department of
Transportation. The dedication must be to the State of Oregon, Oregon Department
of Transportation. The OOOT District contact will assist in coordinating the
dedication. ODOT should provide verification to the local jurisdiction that the
dedication requirement has been fulfilled. The property owner must be the signatory
for the dedication and will be responsible for a certified environmental assessment of
the site prior to transfer of property to the Department.

5. An OOOT Miscellaneous Permit must be obtained for all work in the highway right of
way. When the total value of improvements within the OOOT right of way is
estimated to be $150,000 or more, an agreement with ODOT is required to address
the transfer of ownership of the improvement to OOOT. An intergovernmental
agreement (IGA) is required for agreements involving local governments and a
cooperative improvement agreement (CIA) is required for private sector agreements.
The agreement shall address the work standards that must be followed,
maintenance responsibilities, and compliance with ORS 276.071, which includes
State of Oregon prevailing wage requirements.

6. The applicant must obtain an OOOT permit to place trees in the state right of way.
Tree spacing and design must be consistent with Highway Design Manual Technical
Bulletin R006-03B, or OOOT must approve a design exception.

7. Illumination within the OOOT right of way must be in accordance with AASHTO
illumination standards and the ODOT Lighting Policy and Guidelines, January 2003,
which states that local jurisdictions must enter into an intergovernmental agreement

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Continuing Business 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY:  John Atkins, Jr., City Manager 
    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only 
                                                
 

Subject: Motion to Censure a Member of the Council 

 Recommendation:   Deliberate and act on motion  

Date of Meeting to be Presented: July 13, 2011 

 Fiscal Impact:   NA 

Background:   (Type a brief detailed summary of the item to be presented.) 
At the Council’s July 13, 2011 meeting, Councilor Pottle moved to censure Councilor 
Needham, stating that Councilor Needham violated Council rules by criticizing a fellow 
member of the Council in a letter to the editor published in the Molalla Pioneer newspaper.  
Motion seconded by Councilor Thompson.  

City Attorney Heather Martin stated that any motion for censure is required to have a second and then 
it is to be placed on the agenda for the next meeting in order to provide the Councilor who is the 
subject of the motion time to prepare a defense or explanation in accordance with MMC 
1.02.110 C. 3. Supplemental memo attached.  

 

Agenda Item  
 

5.A. 
 
 
 



 

1 

 C i t y   o f   M o l a l l a 
A  d  m  i  n  i  s  t  r  a  t  i  o  n 

Memo 
To:

From: John Atkins, Jr., City Manager 

 City Council 

Date: July 18, 2011 

Re:

1. Molalla Municipal Code 1.02.080 [Council Rules] Order and decorum states: 

 Motion to censure 

 C.  . . .  11. Councilors will not publicly criticize or attack each other,  City staff or 
other persons. Councilors will not personally attack each other, City staff or other persons. 

   

2.  Molalla Municipal Code 1.02.110 [Council Rules] Councilor conduct further provides as follows: 

 B. Censure. 

 1. The Council may make and enforce its own rules and ensure compliance with City and 
state laws applicable to governing bodies. If a Councilor substantially violates these rules or state law, 
the Council may take action to protect Council integrity and discipline the Councilor with a public 
reprimand, by motion approved by the Council. 

 2. A motion to censure shall include a public statement by the maker as to the grounds 
or basis for the motion. Upon being seconded, a vote on a motion to censure shall be placed on the 
agenda under new business for the next regular Council meeting, but no sooner than two weeks from 
the date of the motion, in order for the Councilor who is the subject to the censure motion to have 
time to prepare an explanation or a defense. 

 3. Discussion on the motion to censure shall occur at the next regular Council meeting. 
The presiding officer shall grant the Councilor who is the subject of the motion a reasonable 
opportunity to present a defense or explanation. Documents relevant to the Councilor’s explanation 
or defense may be presented to the Council for consideration. In its deliberations, the Council may 
seek clarification of any points raised in the explanation or defense. The presiding officer shall then 
call for a vote on the motion to censure. (Ord. 2008-17 §1; Ord. 2007-05 §1) 

 



City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Ordinance 

 
Subject:   An Ordinance Amending the Molalla Municipal Code (Council Rules) 

Relating to Purchasing 

 
Recommendation:  Adopt Ordinance  
Date of Meeting to be Presented:  July 27, 2011 
 
Fiscal Impact:   NA 
 
Background:  (Type a brief detailed summary of the item to be presented.) 

 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   
SUBMITTED BY:  John Atkins, Jr., City Manager  
 
    
ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE SUBMISSIONS OR REQUEST WILL BE SUBMITTED  
TO THE CITY MANAGER FOR CONSIDERATION.                                        

   City Recorder Use Only 

Following discussion during its July 13th , 2011 Council instructed staff to prepare a revision to 
MMC 1.02.240 Authorization of expenditures, to improve clarity and intent. 
  B. Subject to Sections 21.D. and 22.C.3. of the City Charter, the City 
Manager shall not spend or commit more than $10,000.00 of budgeted funds without approval of 
the City Council. (Ord. 2011-01 §1; Ord. 2007-05 §1) 

  
 

Agenda Item  
 

7.A. 
 
  
 
 



  

 1  

City of Molalla 
 

ORDINANCE 2011-05 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MOLALLA MUNICIPAL CODE 

RELATING TO AUTHORIZATION OF EXPENDITURES 
 
 
The City of Molalla ordains as follows: 
 

1. MMC 1.02.240 Authorization of expenditures, is amended as follows 

  B. Subject to Sections 21.D. and 22.C.3. provisions of the City Charter, the City 
Manager shall not spend or commit more than $10,000.00 of budgeted funds on discretio-
nary purchases, excluding recurring expenditures and hiring decisions, without approval of 
the City Council.  

READ by title only for the first time and approved by the City Council, City of Molalla, Oregon, at 
its meeting on the 27th

 
READ for the second time by title only and adopted by the City Council, City of Molalla, Oregon, 
its meeting on the _____day of July, 2011. 

 day of July, 2011. 

         Approved: 
 
 
 
        ________________________ 
        Mike Clarke, Mayor 
 
 
 ATTEST this ____day of ____________ 2010. 

 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Sadie Cramer, City Recorder 

 



City Of Molalla 
City Council Meeting 

 
 Agenda Category: Reports and Announcements 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED BY:  John Atkins, Jr., City Manager 
    

ALL AGENDA ITEMS MUST BE SUBMITTED BY NOON THE  
THURSDAY BEFORE THE SCHEDULED COUNCIL MEETING.  
LATE ITEMS WILL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY MANAGER 
FOR CONSIDERATION.  City Recorder Use Only 
                                                
 

Subject: Stowers Road Report 

 Recommendation:   Information only; no action required  

Date of Meeting to be Presented: July 27, 2011 

 Fiscal Impact:   NA 

Background:   (Type a brief detailed summary of the item to be presented.) 
 
Public Works Director Marc Howatt will update the Council on proposed improvements to 
Stowers Road 
 

Agenda Item  
 

10.A 
 
 
 










































	Agenda 072711
	Hart Ave file
	ab censure 072711
	Censure motion memo
	ab ORD purchasing 072711
	ORD 2011-05 Purchases 072711
	ab Stowers Road 071311
	Stowers Road Improvements - 90 Rercent Plans
	11-1241-OR-G1 G-1 (1).pdf
	11-1241-OR-G2 G-2 (1)
	11-1241-OR-G3 G-3 (1)
	11-1241-OR-G4-G5 G-4 (1)
	11-1241-OR-G4-G5 G-5 (1)
	11-1241-OR-ST_P&P
	11-1241-OR-W_P&P
	11-1241-OR-XSEC C-8 (1)
	11-1241-OR-XSEC C-9 (1)
	11-1241-OR-C12 C-10 (1)
	11-1241-OR-C12 C-11 (1)
	11-1241-OR-C14 C-12 (1)
	11-1241-OR-TCP




